
Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA 

Monday, October 5, 2020 at 1:30 p.m. 

Teleconference 
Zoom videoconference  link provided to Council members and by request. 

Please submit access request by noon on the meeting date to 
info@mendocinocog.org or call MCOG Administration at (707) 463-1859. 

Audio Call-in Option: 1 (669) 900-6833 (in CA) 
Meeting ID: 853 4492 3204 Passcode: 747492 

Additional Media 
For live streaming and later viewing: 

https://www.youtube.com/, search for Mendocino County Video, or 
YouTube link at http://www.mendocinocog.org under Meetings 

The Mendocino Council of Governments (MCOG) meets as the Board of Directors of: 
Mendocino Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) and 

Mendocino County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) 

NOTICE: All meetings of the Mendocino Council of Governments will be conducted by teleconference 
(audio and/or video) and not available for in-person public participation, pursuant to the Governor’s 
Executive Order N-29-20. In order to minimize the risk of exposure to COVID-19, the public may participate 
in lieu of personal attendance in several ways. Since opportunities during the meeting are limited, we 
encourage submitting comments in advance. 

 In advance of the meeting: email comments to info@mendocinocog.org or send comments using the form
at https://www.mendocinocog.org/contact-us, to be read aloud into the public record.

 During the meeting: email comments to info@mendocinocog.org  or send comments using the form
at https://www.mendocinocog.org/contact-us, to be made available as soon as possible to the
Board of Directors, staff, and the general public as they are received and processed by staff.

 During the meeting: make oral comments on the conference call by phone or video when public comment
is invited by the Chair.

Thanks to all for your interest and cooperation. 

NOTE: All items are considered for action unless otherwise noted. 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call
2. Convene as RTPA
3. Recess as RTPA – Reconvene as Policy Advisory Committee

PUBLIC EXPRESSION – Please refer to notice at top of this Agenda. 
4. Participation is welcome in Council meetings.  Comments will be limited to three minutes per person and
not more than ten minutes per subject, so that everyone can be heard.  “Public Expression” time is limited to
matters under the Council's jurisdiction that may not have been considered by the Council previously and are
not on the agenda.  No action will be taken.  Members of the public may comment also during specific agenda
items when recognized by the Chair.

mailto:info@mendocinocog.org
https://www.youtube.com/
http://www.mendocinocog.org/
mailto:info@mendocinocog.org
https://www.mendocinocog.org/contact-us
mailto:info@mendocinocog.org
https://www.mendocinocog.org/contact-us


MCOG Board of Directors Agenda      October 5, 2020, Page 2 of 3 
 
REGULAR CALENDAR 
 

5. Technical Advisory Committee Recommendation of August 19, 2020: Approval of First 
Amendment to Fiscal Year 2020/21 Transportation Planning Overall Work Program (OWP) 

6. Adoption of Resolution No. M2020-___* Approving the FY 2020/21 Project List for the 
California State of Good Repair Program 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
The following items are considered for approval in accordance with Administrative Staff, Committee, and/or 
Directors' recommendations and will be enacted by a single motion.  Items may be removed from the Consent 
Calendar for separate consideration, upon request by a Director or citizen. 
7. Approval of August 17, 2020 Minutes 
 
RATIFY ACTION 
8. Recess as Policy Advisory Committee – Reconvene as RTPA – Ratify Action of Policy Advisory 

Committee 
 
REPORTS 
9. Reports – Information - No Action 

a. Caltrans District 1 – Projects Update and Information 
b. Mendocino Transit Authority 
c. North Coast Railroad Authority 
d. MCOG Staff - Summary of Meetings 
e. MCOG Administration Staff 

i. Dow & Associates Offices Relocated to 525 S. Main St., Suite B, Ukiah – verbal report 
ii. Financial Update – Budget Revenues 

iii. Active Transportation Program (ATP) Application September 15, 2020 – Gualala Project 
iv. Miscellaneous 
v. Next Meeting Date – Monday, November 2, 2020 

f. MCOG Planning Staff 
i. Davey-Bates Consulting Offices Relocated to 525 S. Main St., Suite G, Ukiah – verbal 

report 
ii. 2022 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Update – verbal report 

iii. Miscellaneous 
g. MCOG Directors 
h. California Association of Councils of Governments (CALCOG) Delegates 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
10. Adjourn 
 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) and TRANSLATION REQUESTS 
Persons who require special accommodations, accessible seating, or documentation in alternative formats under the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, or persons who require interpretation services (free of charge) are advised to contact the 
MCOG office at (707) 463-1859, at least five days before the meeting. 
 

Las personas que requieren alojamiento especial de acuerdo con el Americans with Disabilities Act, o personas que 
requieren servicios de interpretación (libre de cargo) deben comunicarse con MCOG (707) 463-1859 al menos cinco dias 
antes de la reunión. 
  



MCOG Board of Directors Agenda      October 5, 2020, Page 3 of 3 
 
 
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
The Brown Act, Section 54954.2, states that the Board may take action on off-agenda items when: 
a) a majority vote determines that an “emergency situation” exists as defined in Section 54956.5, or 
b) a two-thirds vote of the body, or a unanimous vote of those present, determines that there is a need to take 

immediate action and the need for action arose after the agenda was legally posted, or 
c) the item was continued from a prior, legally posted meeting not more than five calendar days before this meeting. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
If agendized, MCOG may adjourn to a closed session to consider litigation or personnel matters (i.e. contractor 
agreements).  Discussion of litigation or pending litigation may be held in closed session by authority of Govt. Code 
Section 54956.9; discussion of personnel matters by authority of Govt. Code Section 54957. 
 
 
POSTED 9.24.2020      * Next Resolution Number:  M2020-09
 





Page 1 of 2 

MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
TITLE:   First Amendment to FY 2020/21 Overall Work Program   DATE PREPARED:  9/22/20 

SUBMITTED BY: Alexis Pedrotti, Project Manager                               MEETING DATE: 10/5/20 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND:   

The Final FY 2020/21 Overall Work Program (totaling $968,745) was adopted by MCOG on June 1, 2020. Now 
that the FY 2019/20 books have closed, we need to carry over and reprogram some unexpended planning funds, 
some of which expire 6/30/21.  Included in this amendment is Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) Funds, Planning, 
Programming and Monitoring (PPM) Funds, Local Transportation Funds (LTF) and State Planning Grant Funding. 
Unexpended RPA funds have been included in this proposed amendment but will not become official until RPA 
fund balances are certified by Caltrans.  

The purpose of this proposed First Amendment is to carry over and reprogram planning funds as follows: 

W.E.1 (MCOG) Regional Government & Intergovernmental Coordination – A total of $2,023 in RPA 
carryover funds is being carried over and added to this work element for MCOG Staff. An additional $520 in LTF 
funding remained for direct costs from FY 2019/20, which was also carried over and added to Work Element 2 for 
direct costs.   

W.E.2 (MCOG) Planning Management & General Coordination (Non-RPA) – MCOG Staff had a 
remaining balance of $6,052 of LTF funding at the close of FY 2019/20. These carryover funds were added to the 
Project Reserve Element since the MCOG Planning Budget has adequate funding allocated to the FY 2020/21 
contracted amount. Additionally, $1,370 has been added to this element for direct costs from several other smaller 
carryover amounts in other work elements.   

W.E.4 (MCOG) Sustainable Transportation Planning – There was a small amount of unexpended RPA 
funds totaling $651, that were carried over and added to MCOG Staff’s FY 2020/21 Work Element 1 budget.  

W.E.5 (MCOG) SB 743 VMT Regional Baseline Study – There was a small amount of unexpended LTF 
funding remaining after the close of this grant project in FY 2019/20. The remaining $627 of LTF was added to the 
Project Reserve budget for future use.  

W.E.6 (CO. DOT) Combined Special Studies – The County Department of Transportation had $791 of 
RPA funding remaining at the close of FY 2019/20. This funding has been carried over and added to their current 
project, increasing the new OWP Work Element 6 for the County DOT to $54,791. 

W.E. 7 (MCOG) Planning, Programming & Monitoring – A total of $40,112 in additional carryover 
funding ($2,694 – RPA; $32,893 - PPM) is being carried over and added to this work element, increasing the total 
to $123,136.   

 W.E. 8 (MCOG) Mendo. Co. Fire Vulnerability Assessment & Emergency Preparedness Grant – An 
estimated amount of carryover funding was included in the Final OWP for the completion of this grant project. At 
the close of the FY 2019/20, the actual carryover is slightly less, totaling $3,793 of LTF funding and $29,324 of 
State Grant funds. The consultant only has retention remaining to bill against this project, which staff expects to be 
concluded in the first quarter of FY 2020/21.   

W.E. 14 (MCOG) Training – A total of $41,041 in carryover funding is being carried over and added to 
this work element, increasing the total to $54,041.   

W.E. 16 (MCOG) Multi-Modal Transportation Planning – A small amount of unexpended RPA funding 
totaling $1,338 remained unclaimed in the FY 2019/20 OWP for this element. They were carried over into the FY 
2020/21 OWP, bringing the new total to $33,338. 

W.E. 18 (MCOG) Geographic Information System (GIS) Activities – Again, this element also had a small 
amount of unexpended RPA funding, totaling $985 that remained unclaimed in the FY 2019/20 OWP. The funds 
were carried over into the FY 2020/21 OWP, bringing the new total to $3,985. Additionally, there was $100 of LTF 

Agenda # 5 
Regular Calendar 
MCOG Meeting 

10/05/2020 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

funding remaining for direct costs, staff re-allocated those funds to Work Element 2, where most of the direct costs 
for MCOG Planning Staff will be expended in FY 2020/21.  

W.E. 20 (MCOG) Grant Development & Assistance – Carryover funding for this element included, $6,145 
of RPA funding; $8,665 ($7,979 – MCOG Staff & $686 – direct costs) of LTF funding. The RPA funds were 
carried over and added to this element, along with $686 of LTF funds, increasing Work Element 20 to $31,831 in 
funding for FY 2020/21. The remaining $7,979 of LTF funding was re-allocated to the Project Reserve element for 
future needs.  
 Project Reserve – This element was included in the OWP to help reserve funding in advance, in case of 
funding shortfalls or necessary project increases. Included in the Final OWP was $11,800 of new LTF funding. 
After the close of FY 2019/20, some additional carryover LTF funds were re-allocated to this reserve, increasing 
the total to $33,779.  
 
This proposed amendment would increase the FY 2020/21 Overall Work Program total from $968,745 to 
$1,083,936, an increase of $115,191.  Details are shown in bold and strike out on the attached Amended Overall 
Work Program.  Copies of the full amendment will be available upon request.   
 
The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) has reviewed and recommended this proposed First Amendment for 
approval at the August 19, 2020 meeting. 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTION REQUIRED:  Consider approval of First Amendment to FY 2020/21 Overall Work Program.   
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
ALTERNATIVES: (1) Approve Amendment (Recommended); (2) Do not approve Amendment; or  
(3) Refer Amendment to TAC for review and recommendation. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION:   Accept the TAC’s recommendation to approve the First Amendment to FY 2020/21  
Overall Work Program (OWP), and authorize Executive Director to sign appropriate certifications and revised 
OWP Agreement (as needed), and forward to Caltrans as required. 
 
/le 
Attachments:  FY 2020/21 Overall Work Program 
  
  



MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 

TITLE: Resolution Approving State of Good Repair Project List for FY 2020/21 

SUBMITTED BY:   Janet Orth, Deputy Director / CFO  DATE:    9.23.2020 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND: 
On August 19, 2019, MCOG approved by resolution Mendocino Transit Authority’s (MTA) Ukiah 
Transit Center project for State of Good Repair (SGR) funding, detailed in the Fiscal Year 2019/20 SGR 
Project List covering three years of funds up to that date. 

The State of Good Repair (SGR) program is a transit capital funding program created by the Road Repair 
and Accountability Act of 2017, also known as Senate Bill (SB) 1. This funding source is derived from a 
fee on vehicle registrations. SGR is a capital program, and cannot be used for operations or project 
development as a stand-alone project. Eligible uses of SGR funds include:  
 Transit capital projects to maintain, repair or modernize a transit operator’s existing

transit fleet or facilities,
 Design, acquisition, and construction of new vehicles or facilities that improve existing

transit services, and
 Services that complement local efforts for repair and improvement of local

transportation infrastructure.

The draft 2019 SGR Guidelines were issued in May 2019 (provided for reference in the August 2019 
meeting packet).  Prior to the 2019/20 fund year, transit operators were able to submit project lists directly 
to Caltrans. Starting in 2019 however, projects must be approved and submitted by the Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency. The FY 2019/20 SGR Project List was submitted by the due date of 
September 1, 2019.  

To date MCOG has allocated SGR funds for Fiscal Years 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20, in the amounts 
estimated by the State Controller. Allocations have been approximately $130,000 per year. MCOG’s own 
budget shows an unallocated amount of $586 reflecting actual revenues slightly above the estimates, held 
for future projects. The actual SGR revenues are received quarterly in MCOG’s fund account. Up to four 
years of funding can be accrued for a project. Once the project is started, four years are allowed for 
expenditure. 

MTA is proposing to program all of the new FY 2020/21 SGR funds, estimated at $139,962, towards their 
existing Ukiah Transit Center project. MTA is also requesting to reprogram their FY 2017/18 allocation to 
fund immediate needs for rehabilitation and facility upgrades in Ukiah and Fort Bragg. Details are shown in 
the attachments to this report. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTION REQUIRED: 
By resolution, approve the State of Good Repair Project List for FY 2020/21. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The Council could reject the proposed project list. – not recommended 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the attached resolution to approve the Fiscal Year 2020/21 State of Good Repair Project List, 
including revised FY 2017/18 funding to rehabilitate MTA’s current facilities as requested and a FY 
2020/21 project. 

Enclosure: Draft Resolution with Exhibit A 

Agenda # 6 
Regular Calendar 
MCOG Meeting 

10/05/2020 





SERVING MENDOCINO COUNTY SINCE 1976

September 21, 2020

Nephele Barrett, Executive Director
Mendocino Council of Governments
367 N State St 4* 206
Ukiah, CA 95482

RE: Mendocino Transit Authority’s State of Good Repair Allocation 17-18 - Revision of Project Description

Dear Nephele,

Mendocino Transit Authority (MTA) received State of Good Repair (SGR) funding for the 17-18 program year as
follows:

PUC 99313: $118,398
PUC 99314: $10,597

MTA’s project, at the time, was to utilize this funding for the Ukiah Transit Center Project (see attached 17-18
project list). At this time, MTA has an immediate need to rehabilitate a portion of the Ukiah Operations Building as
well as replace the 4 large roll-up doors located at the Fort Bragg Yard. MTA is at risk of losing the 17-18 funding if
we do not begin to expend it on a project. Accordingly, MTA would like to update the project description for the
17-18 SGR funding.

I have attached an updated Project Funding spreadsheet which reflects this change. MTA’s Board of Directors will
be presented with a resolution and the updated project list for approval at its September 30, 2020 Board Meeting.

We appreciate your consideration of this request. If you require additional information do not hesitate to contact
me at 707 234-6444.

Sincerely,

‘1
Jacob King, Interim Executive Director
Mendocino Transit Authority

Enclosures: Revised SGR Project Funding spreadsheet
17-18 Approved SGR Project List

cc: Loretta Ellard, MCOG
Janet Orth, MCOG

Mendacino Transit Authority/241 Plant Road/Ukiah/CA/95482/707-462 1422





 
 

 
BOARD of DIRECTORS 

 
RESOLUTION No. M2020-___ 

 
APPROVING THE FY 2020/21 PROJECT LIST 

FOR THE CALIFORNIA STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, 
 
 The Mendocino Council of Governments (MCOG) is the designated Regional Transportation 

Planning Agency for Mendocino County;  
 
 Senate Bill 1 (SB1), the Road Repair & Accountability Act of 2017, established the State of 

Good Repair program to fund eligible transit maintenance, rehabilitation and capital project 
activities that maintain the public transit system in a state of good repair;  

 
 MCOG is an eligible project sponsor and may receive and distribute State Transit Assistance 

and State of Good Repair funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies) for eligible 
transit capital projects; and 

 
 Mendocino Transit Authority, as an eligible sub-recipient, has proposed a Fiscal Year 

2020/21 Project List for State of Good Repair Program funds, attached as Exhibit A; and 
 

 MCOG concurs with the proposed list of eligible projects; therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED, THAT: 
 
The Mendocino Council of Governments approves the Fiscal Year 2020/21 Project List and  
finds that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and requirements set forth in 
the Certification and Assurances document and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for 
all State of Good Repair funded transit capital projects. 
 
ADOPTION OF THIS RESOLUTION was moved by Director ______________, seconded by 
Director _______, and approved on this 5th day of October, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSTAINING:   
ABSENT:  
 
WHEREUPON, the Chairman declared the resolution adopted, AND SO ORDERED. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
ATTEST: Nephele Barrett, Executive Director Dan Gjerde, Chair 





Th
e 
co
lu
m
n

Au
to
‐P
op

ul
at
ed

 fr
om

 
Re

gi
on

al
 E
nt
ity

 In
fo
 T
ab

1
M
en

do
ci
no

 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ts
 

M
en

do
ci
no

 T
ra
ns
it 
Au

th
or
ity

U
ki
ah

  T
ra
ns
it 

Ce
nt
er

De
ve
lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 c
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
of
 a
 m

ul
ti‐
m
od

al
 tr
an

si
t 

ce
nt
er
 in

 th
e 
Ci
ty
 o
f U

ki
ah

 in
 M

en
do

ci
no

 C
ou

nt
y.
  

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te
r w

ill
 c
ol
la
bo

ra
te
 tr
an

sp
or
ta
tio

n 
se
rv
ic
es
 

fo
r M

en
do

ci
no

 T
ra
ns
it,
 L
ak
e 
Tr
an

si
t, 
G
re
yh
ou

nd
, 

Am
tr
ak
 a
nd

 W
al
k‐
Bi
ke
 M

en
do

ci
no

.
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 F
ac
ili
tie

s
M
od

er
ni
za
tio

n

2
M
en

do
ci
no

 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ts
 

M
en

do
ci
no

 T
ra
ns
it 
Au

th
or
ity

Re
ha

bi
lit
at
io
n 

U
ki
ah

 T
ra
ns
it 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 F
ac
ili
ty

M
TA

's 
U
ki
ah

 T
ra
ns
it 
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 F
ac
ili
ty
 is
 in

 n
ee

d 
of
 a
 

ne
w
 fl
oo

r a
nd

 p
lu
m
bi
ng

.  
Re

ha
bi
lit
at
io
n 
of
 th

is
 s
pa

ce
 is
 

ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
as
 it
 is
 th

e 
tr
an

si
t d

riv
er
s 
m
ai
n 
fa
ci
lit
y 
an

d 
sa
fe
ty
 h
as
 b
ec
om

e 
an

 is
su
e 
du

e 
to
 it
s 
de

la
pe

ta
te
d 

co
nd

iti
on

 a
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
of
 th

e 
ag
e 
of
 th

e 
fa
ci
lit
y.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 F
ac
ili
tie

s
Re

ha
bi
lit
at
io
n

Po
or

3
M
en

do
ci
no

 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ts
 

M
en

do
ci
no

 T
ra
ns
it 
Au

th
or
ity

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t o

f 4
 

ro
ll 
up

 d
oo

rs
 a
t 

Fo
rt
 B
ra
gg
 

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 

Fa
ci
lit
y

Th
e 
cu
rr
en

t c
on

di
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
4 
ro
ll 
up

 d
oo

rs
 lo

ca
te
d 
at
 

th
e 
Fo

rt
 B
ra
gg
 Y
ar
d 
an

d 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 F
ac
ili
ty
 is
 a
 sa

fe
ty
 

ha
za
rd
 d
ue

 to
 th

ei
r d

et
er
io
ra
tin

g 
co
nd

iti
on

 a
s 
a 
re
su
lt 

of
 a
ge
 a
nd

 c
oa

st
al
 sa

lt 
ai
r. 
 T
he

se
 d
oo

rs
 w
ill
 b
e 
re
pl
ac
ed

 
w
ith

 m
od

er
n 
hu

rr
ic
an

e 
ro
ll 
up

 d
oo

rs
. 

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 F
ac
ili
tie

s
M
od

er
ni
za
tio

n
Po

or

FY
 2
02

0‐
21

 S
ta
te
 o
f G

oo
d 
Re

pa
ir 
Pr
oj
ec
t I
nf
or
m
at
io
n

As
se
t T

yp
e

D
ro
pd

ow
n 
Se
le
ct
io
n

Pr
oj
ec
t C

at
eg
or
y

D
ro
pd

ow
n 
Se
le
ct
io
n

Cu
rr
en

t 
Co

nd
iti
on

 
of
 A
ss
et

D
ro
pd

ow
n 

Se
le
ct
io
n

#
Re

ci
pi
en

t/
Re

gi
on

Au
to
‐P
op

ul
at
ed

Su
b‐
Re

ci
pi
en

t/
O
pe

ra
to
r

D
ro
pd

ow
n 
Se
le
ct
io
n

Pr
oj
ec
t T

itl
e

Pr
oj
ec
t T

itl
es
 m

us
t 

m
at
ch
 if
 a
pp

ea
rin

g 
on

 

a 
pr
ev
io
us
 li
st
.

M
ax

 7
5 
Ch

ar
ac
te
rs

Pr
oj
ec
t D

es
cr
ip
tio

n
M
ax

 3
00

 C
ha

ra
ct
er
s

If 
yo

u 
ne

ed
 m

or
e 
sp
ac
e 
pl
ac
e 
ad

di
tio

na
l i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
in
 N
ot
es

Re
so

. M
20

20
-_

__
Ex

hi
bi

t A
4 p

ag
es



Th
e 
co
lu
m
n 1 2 3

#
Pr
oj
ec
t S

ta
rt
 

Da
te

M
M
/D

D/
YY
YY

Pr
oj
ec
t 

Co
m
pl
et
io
n 

Da
te

M
M
/D

D/
YY
YY

10
/0
1/
20

20
12

/3
1/
20

23
U
ki
ah

 
M
en

do
ci
no

 
N
o

20
10

/0
1/
20

20
12

/3
1/
20

20
U
ki
ah

 
M
en

do
ci
no

 
N
o

15
10

/0
1/
20

20
12

/3
1/
20

20
Fo

rt
 B
ra
gg

M
en

do
ci
no

 
N
o

Pr
oj
ec
t 

Lo
ca
tio

n
Ci
ty

Ex
is
tin

g 
St
at
e 
of
 

G
oo

d 
Re

pa
ir 

Pr
oj
ec
t

Pr
oj
ec
t 

Lo
ca
tio

n 
Co

un
ty

U
se
fu
l L
ife

If 
ap

pl
ic
ab

le
 

In
 Y
ea

rs

Pr
oj
ec
t D

at
es



Th
e 
co
lu
m
n 1 2 3

#

SG
R 
Co

st
s

To
ta
l 

20
20

‐2
1 

SG
R 
Co

st
s

99
31

3

20
20

‐2
1

SG
R 
Co

st
s

99
31

4

To
ta
l 

SG
R 
Co

st
s

99
31

3

To
ta
l 

SG
R 
Co

st
s

99
31

4

To
ta
l 

O
th
er
 S
B1

 
Co

st
s

Pl
ea

se
 Id

en
tif
y 

Pr
og

ra
m
 in

 N
ot
es

To
ta
l

ST
A 
Co

st
s 
‐ 

N
ot
 In

cl
ud

in
g 

SG
R

To
ta
l 

Al
l O

th
er
 

Fu
nd

s
Co

ng
re
ss
io
na

l
Se

na
te

As
se
m
bl
y

$1
30

,0
70

$9
,8
92

$3
69

,1
96

$3
0,
64

8
53

9,
80

6
$ 
   

2
2

2

$0
$0

$8
8,
39

8
$6

,0
00

94
,3
98

$ 
   
  

2
2

2

$0
$0

$3
0,
00

0
$4

,5
97

34
,5
97

$ 
   
  

2
2

2

Le
gi
sl
at
iv
e 
Di
st
ric

ts
N
on

‐S
G
R 
Co

st
s



Th
e 
co
lu
m
n 1 2 3

#

In
cl
ud

es
 fu

nd
s 
fr
om

 F
Ys
 1
8/
19

, 1
9/
20

, &
 2
0/
21

Th
e 
17

‐1
8 
SG

R 
pr
oj
ec
t w

as
 o
rig

in
al
ly
 fo

r t
he

 U
ki
ah

 T
ra
ns
it 
Ce

nt
er
.  
Du

e 
to
 ti
m
e 
co
ns
tr
ai
nt
s 
re
la
te
d 
to
 th

e 
U
ki
ah

 T
ra
ns
it 
Ce

nt
er
 p
ro
je
ct
, M

TA
 

w
ou

ld
 li
ke
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 
th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t a

s 
ou

tli
ne

d 
an

d 
be

gi
n 
to
 e
xp
en

d 
th
e 

17
‐1
8 
fu
nd

s.

Th
e 
17

‐1
8 
SG

R 
pr
oj
ec
t w

as
 o
rig

in
al
ly
 fo

r t
he

 U
ki
ah

 T
ra
ns
it 
Ce

nt
er
.  
Du

e 
to
 ti
m
e 
co
ns
tr
ai
nt
s 
re
la
te
d 
to
 th

e 
U
ki
ah

 T
ra
ns
it 
Ce

nt
er
 p
ro
je
ct
, M

TA
 

w
ou

ld
 li
ke
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 
th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t a

s 
ou

tli
ne

d 
an

d 
be

gi
n 
to
 e
xp
en

d 
th
e 

17
‐1
8 
fu
nd

s.N
ot
es
, C

om
m
en

ts
, A

dd
iti
on

al
 In

fo
rm

at
io
n



MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
MINUTES 

Monday, August 17, 2020 

Teleconference Only 
In compliance with Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 

The Mendocino Council of Governments (MCOG) meets as the Board of Directors of: 
Mendocino Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) and 

Mendocino County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call. The meeting was called to order at 1:36 p.m. with Directors Rex Jackman
(Caltrans/PAC), Jim Brown, Larry Stranske, Richey Wasserman, John Haschak, Michael Carter and
Dan Gjerde present by Zoom teleconference; Chair Gjerde presiding. Tess Albin-Smith arrived at 1:41
p.m. during #3a.

Staff present on the call: Nephele Barrett, Executive Director; Janet Orth, Deputy Director/CFO; 
Loretta Ellard, Deputy Planner; Lisa Davey-Bates, Transportation Planner; James Sookne, Program 
Manager; Alexis Pedrotti, Project Manager; Danielle Casey, Transportation Planner, and Monica 
Galliani, Administrative Assistant. 

Note: Public comment was invited via email or online comment form; staff monitored for incoming 
comments throughout the meeting, reporting periodically. 

2. Convene as SAFE

3. Mendocino SAFE Staff Recommendations:
a. Call Box Program Update. Ms. Pedrotti reported that of the 141 call boxes operated

throughout Mendocino County, 97 are traditional cellular call boxes and the remaining are
newer boxes using satellite technology. While satellite boxes cost more to run, they reach
areas of the county that cellular boxes cannot. All cellular boxes will need to be upgraded to
4G service beginning December 31, 2020. Ms. Barrett noted that the SAFE is due for a new
five-year plan. Information only; no action taken.

b. Approval of Fiscal Year 2020/21 Mendocino SAFE Program Budget. Ms. Pedrotti reviewed
the draft SAFE budget. New estimated revenues of $109,500 are expected to cover
operational costs, while the carried-over fund balance of $167,233 would pay for equipment
upgrades. Total expenditures are estimated at $252,875, leaving a balance of $23,858.

Upon motion by Brown, second by Carter, and carried unanimously on roll call vote
(7 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Carter, Wasserman, Albin-Smith, Haschak, and Gjerde; 0
Noes; 0 Abstaining; 0 Absent): IT IS ORDERED that the  FY 2020/21 SAFE Program
Budget is approved as recommended by staff.

c. Adoption of Resolution To Approve Agreement with the State of California Department
of California Highway Patrol (CHP). Upon motion by Carter, second by Albin-Smith,
and carried unanimously on roll call vote (7 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Carter, Wasserman,
Albin-Smith, Haschak, and Gjerde; 0 Noes; 0 Abstaining; 0 Absent): IT IS ORDERED
that the following resolution is adopted.

Resolution No. S2020-01 
To Approve Agreement with the State of California  

Department of California Highway Patrol (CHP) 
(Reso. #S2020-01 is incorporated herein by reference) 

Agenda # 7 
Consent Calendar 
MCOG Meeting 

10/05/2020 



MCOG Board of Directors Minutes 
August 17, 2020, Page 2 
 
4. Recess as SAFE  
 

5.   Recess as RTPA – Reconvene as Policy Advisory Committee 
 
6. Public Expression. None. 
 
7. Acceptance of Final Mendocino County Fire Vulnerability Assessment, Public Outreach Plan, 
and Emergency Evacuation Preparedness Plan. Ms. Ellard gave an update on the presentation by 
Category Five Professional Consultants at the public forum held on June 22, 2020, attended by about 
100 people. The plans were finalized after receiving public comments. A presentation to the Board of 
Supervisors is pending. Ms. Barrett listed some of the other agencies that worked on the projects, such 
as the Brooktrails Fire Department. Ms. Ellard added that MCOG is involved in this project because 
the county executive office had requested that MCOG be the applicant for the plan. Board discussion 
followed, with Bob Neumann of Category Five Professional Consultants participating. 

Director Haschak expressed appreciation towards Category Five for communicating with 
many communities in Mendocino County to complete this project. He reported speaking with the 
chief building official to learn how Mendocino County’s building codes are addressing ways to 
efficiently build to prepare for emergencies in the future. Most of the CalFire requirements are 
already in the County’s codes. 

Director Carter noted he works with Office of Emergency Services on communications and 
that the report did a good job of addressing that issue. 

Director Albin-Smith asked Mr. Neumann what he changed in response to her comments on 
the draft, particularly noting the Pygmy Forest along the coast, to which he responded that the 
Mendocino and Fort Bragg section of the study had been strengthened. Discussion continued on 
access routes and evacuation/shelter concerns. Mr. Neumann praised the new Fire Safe Council 
director, Scott Cratty. 

The Chair invited public comments. Zomala Abell pointed out that a coastal group known as 
Hubs and Roads has been using mapping and alternative hub tools and asked if the plan contained 
similar approaches. She also listed possible shelter locations that had not been included in the plan. 

Ms. Barrett added that the county is large and diverse and the plans are a good starting point 
for more localized efforts. Mr. Neumann thanked staff and all involved for their support throughout 
the project. Chair Gjerde noted the plans are even more relevant today than when the grant was 
started. 

Upon motion by Carter, second by Albin-Smith, and carried unanimously on roll call 
vote (8 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Carter, Wasserman, Albin-Smith, Haschak, Jackman/PAC, and 
Gjerde; 0 Noes; 0 Abstaining; 0 Absent); IT IS ORDERED that the Fire Vulnerability 
Assessment, Public Outreach Plan, and Evacuation Plan are accepted as presented by Category 
Five Professional Consultants. 
 
8. Adoption of Resolution Approving the Programming of Phase 2 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, 
and Economic Security (CARES) Act Funds Under the FTA Section 5311 Non-Urbanized 
Program for Mendocino Transit Authority Operating Assistance. Ms. Barrett gave a brief 
description of the CARES Act eligibility and reported that MTA was the only applicant for the 
second round of funding through the program. MTA applied for the full amount of $1,068,573. 
Board discussion included: 

 Will the senior centers be apportioned any amount of CARES funding through MTA? 
(Wasserman) – No, the funding is only available for general transit. Senior centers 
specialized transportation programs are thus ineligible. However, the funds could indirectly 
protect the contracts by offsetting MTA losses. 



MCOG Board of Directors Minutes 
August 17, 2020, Page 3 
 

 Will this amount bring MTA’s funds back to normal? (Haschak) – It is currently too soon to 
know. 

The Chair invited public comment. In response to a question from Ms. Abell, Ms. Barrett 
further explained that MCOG has issued allocation instructions to the County Auditor that ensure 
local funds for the senior centers of Mendocino County. Jacob King, acting MTA director, noted he 
had reached out to the centers. 

Upon motion by Haschak, second by Wasserman, and carried unanimously on roll call 
vote (8 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Carter, Wasserman, Albin-Smith, Haschak, Jackman/PAC, and 
Gjerde; 0 Noes; 0 Abstaining; 0 Absent); IT IS ORDERED that the follow resolution is adopted.  

Resolution No. M2020-08 
Approving the Programming of Phase 2 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 

(CARES) Act Funds Under the FTA Section 5311 Non-Urbanized  Program for 
Mendocino Transit Authority Operating Assistance 

(Reso. #M2020-08 is incorporated herein by reference) 
 
9. Presentation: ArcMap Planning Portal. Director Jackman gave a presentation on how to use 
Caltrans’ ArcMap Planning Portal mapping tool, developed by ESRI in a suite of Geographic 
Information System (GIS) software, to find status of projects. Director Albin-Smith commented that 
she had tested the tool and that it proved to be easy and effective. A brief discussion followed. 
MCOG staff will post a link at www.mendocinocog.org. No action was taken. 
 
10. Consent Calendar. Upon motion by Brown, second by Carter, and carried unanimously on roll 
call vote (8 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Carter, Wasserman, Albin-Smith, Haschak, Jackman/PAC, and 
Gjerde; 0 Noes; 0 Abstaining; 0 Absent): IT IS ORDERED that consent items are approved: 

10. Approval of June 1, 2020 Minutes – as written 
 
11. Recess as Policy Advisory Committee – Reconvene as RTPA – Ratify Action of Policy 
Advisory Committee. Upon motion by Wasserman, second by Brown, and carried unanimously on 
roll call vote (7 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Carter, Wasserman, Albin-Smith, Haschak, and Gjerde; 0 
Noes; 0 Abstaining; 0 Absent): IT IS ORDERED that the actions taken by the Policy Advisory 
Committee are ratified by the MCOG Board of Directors.   
 
12. Reports - Information 

a. Caltrans District 1 – Projects Update and Information. Chair Gjerde mentioned that the SR 20 
Safety Alignment Project and SR 1 Resurfacing Project are progressing well. Director 
Wasserman added that there is also a resurfacing project underway in Point Arena which will 
stretch to the Sonoma County line. Director Haschak expressed appreciation for the electronic 
signs posted by Caltrans for traffic advisories. Director Jackman noted ADA projects in Point 
Arena and Hopland.  

 

b. Mendocino Transit Authority. None. 
 

c. North Coast Railroad Authority. Ms. Ellard reported that per Senate Bill 1029, CalSTA, the 
state transportation agency, is working with Caltrans on finalizing an overall assessment of the 
NCRA, whose results should be posted soon.  

 

d. MCOG Staff - Summary of Meetings. Ms. Barrett referred to her written report. She told the 
board that all meetings continue to be held remotely due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 



MCOG Board of Directors Minutes 
August 17, 2020, Page 4 
 

e. MCOG Administration Staff 
i. Status of Amendment to Joint Powers Agreement. Ms. Orth reported that all five 

member agencies had approved the amendment by resolution to add housing matters 
as a specific power, and that she had circulated the final document for signatures. Ms. 
Barrett added that staff is now working on a Regional Early Action Program housing 
grant application for the initial funding to allow staff to work administratively with 
the local planning representatives to develop a proposal for utilizing the available 
state grant funding. 

ii. Municipal Advisory Council Meetings Attended (Laytonville, Round Valley, Gualala). 
Ms. Barrett provided an update on prospective projects that were discussed in each 
meeting. 

iii. California Transportation Foundation (CTF) Forum – July 23, 2020 Webinar. Ms. 
Orth summarized her written report, noting recurring themes in statewide meetings 
attended throughout the summer concerning transformational shifts brought on by the 
pandemic. Revenue sources are deeply impacted and few solutions available. Funded 
construction projects are moving forward, with emphasis on virus safety compliance. 
It is predicted that telecommuting and remote work will continue into the future. 

iv. Miscellaneous. None. 
v. Next Meeting Date. Monday, October 5, 2020. 

 

f. MCOG Planning Staff. None. 
 

g. MCOG Directors. None. 
 

h. California Association of Councils of Governments (CALCOG) Delegates. None. 
 

13. Conference with Legal Counsel—Existing Litigation (Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9), Dewey-White v. Mendocino Council of Governments, Mendocino Superior 
Court Case No. SCUKCVPT 18-70179. Adjourned to closed session at 3:29 p.m. and reconvened 
in open session at 3:53p.m. Chair Gjerde reported that information and update were received from 
legal counsel. 
 
14. Adjournment.  The meeting was adjourned at 3:54 p.m. 
 
 
Submitted: NEPHELE BARRETT, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  

 
 
By Monica Galliani, Administrative Assistant 



Agenda #9d 

Reports 
MCOG Meeting 

10/05/2020MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
STAFF REPORT 

TITLE: Summary of Meetings DATE PREPARED: 9/22/20 

SUBMITTED BY:   Monica Galliani, Administrative Assistant 

BACKGROUND:  Since our last regular MCOG meeting packet, MCOG Administration and Planning 
staff has attended (or will have attended) the following meetings on behalf of MCOG: 

Date Meeting/Event Staff 
08/18/2020 Mendocino Transit Authority (MTA) Coordinated Plan Meeting Barrett, Ellard & Sookne 
08/19/2020 MCOG Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Barrett, Casey, Ellard, 

Pedrotti, Sookne 
08/19/2020 Caltrans and Indian Health Service Meeting Barrett & Sookne 
08/20/2020 Rural Counties Task Force (RCTF) Work Group Barrett 
08/24/2020 RCTF Interregional Transportation Specific Plan (ITSP) Meeting Barrett & Davey-Bates 
08/24/2020 Gualala Coordination Meeting w/ Caltrans Barrett 
08/26/2020 Great Redwood Trail Workshop Ellard & Barrett 
08/26/2020 MTA Meeting Ellard 
08/27/2020 Brown Act in a COVID-19 Climate Webinar Ellard, Galliani & Parker 
08/27/2020 2 Gualala Active Transportation Program (ATP) Meetings w/ Caltrans Barrett, Casey & Ellard 
09/01/2020 Gualala ATP Meeting Casey & Ellard 
09/02/2020 ATP Technical Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting Barrett 
09/03/2020 Gualala ATP meeting Barrett, Casey, Ellard 
09/03/2020 California Active Transportation (CAT) Plan TAG Meeting Barrett & Ellard 
09/08/2020 Gualala Design Meeting Barrett & Casey 
09/08/2020 Gualala ATP Community Feedback Briefing Barrett & Casey 
09/10/2020 Gualala ATP Meeting Barrett & Casey 
09/13/2020 Gualala ATP Meeting Barrett, Casey, Ellard 
09/14/2020 Gualala ATP Meeting Barrett, Casey & Ellard 
09/17/2020 Regional Transportation Planning Check-In Barrett, Ellard & Sookne 
09/18/2020 RCTF/Senate Bill (SB) 743 Meeting Barrett & Ellard 
09/18/2020 RCTF Meeting Barrett, Casey, Orth & Ellard 
09/22/2020 Board of Supervisors’ Mtg re: Fire Vulnerability/Evacuation Plan Docs Barrett & Ellard 
09/23/2020 Integrated Climate Adaptation and Resiliency Program (ICARP) 

Regional Adaptation Planning Workshop 
Casey & Ellard 

09/30/2020 Caltrans Local Roads Safety Program (LRSP) Follow-Up Barrett, Casey, Ellard & 
Sookne 

I will provide information to the Board regarding the outcome of any of these meetings as requested. 

ACTION REQUIRED: None. 

ALTERNATIVES:   None identified. 

RECOMMENDATION:  None. This is for information only. 





MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 

TITLE:  Financial Update – Budget Revenues 

SUBMITTED BY:   Janet Orth, Deputy Director / CFO DATE:    9.21.2020 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND: 

2019/20 LTF Budget Revenues at Fiscal Year End (Unaudited). At our budget workshop last May, 
I reported on the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) revenues, which are derived from the quarter-
cent sales tax dedicated for transportation. At that time, there was concern that the pandemic would 
have a negative fiscal impact on these vital revenues, and we know now there have been impacts to 
the overall economy. In good news however, the LTF deposits have come in strong at about a 
quarter-million over budget for the year (and continuing at a high level into the first month of the 
new fiscal year). As a summary of the attached detail, the budget compared to 12 months of actual 
receipts July (September) through June (August), accrual basis, shows: 

Auditor’s Estimate  LTF Receipts FYE  Excess at Fiscal Year End 

$ 3,852,643  $ 4 ,109,625  $ 256,982   (6.7%) 

Receipts typically come in two months after taxes are collected. Monthly deposits came in at a low 
of $234,849 (March/May) to a high of $436,455 (Aug./Oct.). (Some of these variances can be 
explained by the State’s system of advances and later reconciliation payments.) By MCOG policy 
the excess revenue is to be deposited in the LTF Reserve fund account for later allocation. 

State Transit Assistance. This fund, derived from gasoline and diesel taxes, presents a different 
picture. While people have been shopping and paying sales tax, they are also driving less. 
Revenues for 2019/20 came in at $807,802, down 15 percent ($138,377) from the State 
Controller’s estimate of $946,179. For 2020/21 the estimate was reduced from a preliminary of 
$834,637 to a revised estimate of $492,043, down another 41 percent. 

MCOG holds an unallocated fund balance of $344,450. Combined with estimated new revenues of 
$492,043 for a total of $ 836,493 before interest earnings, we can more than meet MTA’s 2020/21 
claim of $834,637. 

2020/21 Budget Amendment. Going forward, we’ve talked about the potential need for an 
amendment in response to a revenue decline. The County Auditor-Controller had indicated 
waiting for the first quarter of actual revenues before revising his LTF fund estimate. Therefore 
with the two-month time lag of accrual deposits, we would not make an amendment before 
December. Fortunately, starting from a strong fiscal position, we have the cash flow resources 
available to meet budget needs until then. 

I will be glad to answer any questions or discuss other aspects of the budget at our meeting. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTION REQUIRED: None, this report is not agendized for action at this meeting. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
No action, this report is for information only. 

Agenda # 9eii 
Reports 

MCOG Meeting 
10/05/2020 





Lo
ca
l T
ra
ns
po

rt
at
io
n 
Fu

nd
 (L
TF
) R

ev
en

ue
 &
 M

TA
 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 ‐ 
Ca

sh
 F
lo
w
 A
na

ly
sis

J. 
O
rt
h 
9.
25

.2
01

7,
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
10

.1
1.
20

19

Q
ua

rt
er
ly
 a
ct
ua

ls
Sa
le
s T

ax
M
CO

G
 B
ud

ge
t

Sa
le
s T

ax
Da

te
M
TA

 P
ay
m
en

t
Da

te
 A
llo

ca
tio

n
M
TA

 P
ay
m
en

t
Se
ni
or
s C

on
tr
ac
t

Co
m
m
en

ts
co
m
pa

re
d 
to

M
o.
 o
f O

rig
in

Ye
ar

Am
ou

nt
Re

ce
iv
ed

# 
fo
r F

Y
Re

le
as
ed

 to
 M

TA
Am

ou
nt

Re
im

bu
rs
em

en
t

pr
ev
io
us
 y
ea

r
Ju
ly
 2
01

9
20

19
/2
0

35
0,
28

0.
14

$ 
 

9/
25

/2
01

9
3 
of
 1
2

9/
27

/2
01

9
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

55
,6
84

$ 
   
   
   
   
 

Se
ni
or
s a

nn
ua

l i
ns
ur
an

ce
 p
ai
d 
to
 M

TA
 o
n 
8.
26

.2
01

9
Au

g 
20

19
43

6,
45

4.
52

$ 
 

10
/2
5/
20

19
4 
of
 1
2

10
/2
9/
20

19
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

12
8,
19

3
$ 
   
   
   
 

Se
ni
or
s r
ei
m
b 
pa

id
 to

 M
TA

 o
n 
10

.1
.2
01

9 
fo
r 1

Q
Se
pt
 2
01

9
1,
11

5,
51

3
$ 
   
 

32
8,
77

8.
13

$ 
 

11
/2
0/
20

19
5 
of
 1
2

11
/3
0/
20

19
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

10
6.
0%

O
ct
 2
01

9
32

5,
92

9.
23

$ 
 

12
/2
6/
20

19
6 
of
 1
2

12
/2
0/
20

19
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

N
ov

 2
01

9
35

9,
93

1.
84

$ 
 

1/
21

/2
02

0
7 
of
 1
2

1/
23

/2
02

0
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

De
c 
20

19
1,
12

4,
57

4
$ 
   
 

43
8,
71

3.
16

$ 
 

2/
20

/2
02

0
8 
of
 1
2

2/
24

/2
02

0
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

11
1.
5%

Ja
n 
20

20
27

9,
83

0.
43

$ 
 

3/
26

/2
02

0
9 
of
 1
2

3/
23

/2
02

0
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

12
8,
19

3
$ 
   
   
   
 

Se
ni
or
s r
ei
m
b 
pa

id
 to

 M
TA

 o
n 
3.
31

.2
02

0 
fo
r 2

Q
Fe
b 
20

20
29

1,
85

8.
37

$ 
 

4/
21

/2
02

0
10

 o
f 1

2
4/
23

/2
02

0
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

12
8,
19

3
$ 
   
   
   
 

Se
ni
or
s r
ei
m
b 
pa

id
 to

 M
TA

 o
n 
4.
20

.2
02

0 
fo
r 3

Q
M
ar
 2
02

0
80

6,
53

8
$ 
   
   
 

23
4,
84

9.
44

$ 
 

5/
27

/2
02

0
11

 o
f 1

2
5/
26

/2
02

0
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

Pa
ym

en
t e

nt
ry
 e
rr
or
 in

 M
un

is,
 c
or
re
ct
ed

 5
.3
1

92
.3
%

Ap
r 2

02
0

26
2,
71

7.
83

$ 
 

6/
25

/2
02

0
12

 o
f 1

2
6/
30

/2
02

0
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

11
5,
23

6
$ 
   
   
   
 

Fi
na

l F
Y 
pa

ym
en

t. 
Se
ni
or
s f
in
al
 p
ay
m
en

t m
ad

e 
8.
10

.2
02

0
M
ay
 2
02

0
43

3,
54

1.
25

$ 
 

7/
27

/2
02

0
Ad

va
nc
e 
to
 M

TA
 fo

r F
Y 
20

20
/2
1 
w
he

n 
ca
sh
 b
al
an

ce
 a
llo

w
s

Ju
ne

 2
02

0
1,
06

3,
00

0
$ 
   
 

36
6,
74

0.
45

$ 
 

8/
26

/2
02

0
1 
of
 1
2

8/
25

/2
02

0
24

9,
42

7.
00

$ 
   
  

75
,9
26

.0
0

$ 
   
   
 

Se
ni
or
s m

on
th
ly
 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 #
1 
an

d 
2 
on

 8
.2
5.
20

20
10

3.
0%

FY
 T
ot
al
 R
ev
en

ue
4,
10

9,
62

5
$ 
   
 

10
6.
7%

Pe
rc
en

t o
f b

ud
ge
t t
o 
da

te
Bu

dg
et

3,
85

2,
64

3
$ 
   
 

Co
m
pa

re
d 
to
 la
st
 y
ea

r's
 a
ct
ua

ls:
10

3.
2%

Ex
ce
ss
 (S

ho
rt
fa
ll)

25
6,
98

2
$ 
   
   
 

6.
7%

J. 
O
rt
h,
 M

CO
G

Pa
ge
 1
 o
f 1

U
pd

at
ed

 9
.1
8.
20

20





MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
STAFF REPORT 

TITLE: Gualala Downtown Streetscape Active Transportation DATE PREPARED:  09/23/20 
Program Grant Application & Upcoming Public Forum MEETING DATE:  10/05/20 

SUBMITTED BY:   Nephele Barrett, Executive Director 

BACKGROUND:  MCOG first approved project development funding for the Gualala Downtown 
Streetscape Project in the 2014 RTIP.  Caltrans began work on the environmental review and document in 
2016.  In the 2020 Regional Transportation Improvement Program which MCOG adopted in December 
2019, money was programmed for right of way activities on the project.  At that time, staff reported the 
intent to submit an application for Active Transportation Program Funding to cover the costs of 
construction on the project.  Those applications were due to the state September 15.  MCOG staff worked 
closely with Caltrans staff to complete the application, asking for a total of $7.224 million, which includes 
full funding for construction and additional funding for environmental, design and right-of-way work.  We 
won’t learn until February if the application was successful.   

In the meantime, Caltrans environmental and design staff continues to make progress on project 
development.  Last fall, Caltrans presented options to a working group and at a public meeting of nearly 200 
attendees.  Based on the feedback from those, environmental and design teams moved forward with an 
alternative that would provide 6 foot sidewalks, parking on both sides of the highway, bike lanes on both 
sides, and two travel lanes, for a right of way of 64 feet.  Unfortunately, the design team subsequently 
informed us that due to the slope from east to west, retaining walls ranging between 3 and 5 feet would be 
needed to accommodate that width.  In order to avoid significant retaining walls, the project will need to be 
narrowed, which means that it won’t be possible to fit in every component for the full length of the project. 
In August, Caltrans began notifying the community and stakeholders of the need to explore project options.  

An online public forum is tentatively scheduled for November 12 to discuss options with the community 
and stakeholders.  The date for the forum has been pushed out to allow adequate time for preparation.  A 
brand new design team has recently taken on the project at Caltrans, and the team transition has caused 
some delays.  The delays aren’t anticipated to cause a problem in the overall project timeline, as construction 
isn’t expected to begin until the 2025 construction season.   

We will work with Caltrans to determine how best to conduct the online forum, as well as allow alternative 
forms of participation for community members.  A combination of direct mail, local media, flyers/posters, 
and social media will be used to publicize the forum and other engagement opportunities.   

ACTION REQUIRED:  No action is required – discussion/information only. 

ALTERNATIVES:  None identified. 

RECOMMENDATION:   No action is required – discussion/information only at this time.  Staff will 
inform MCOG Board members once a date has been confirmed for the public forum.   

Agenda # 9eiii 
Reports 

MCOG Meeting 
10/05/2020 


	PUBLIC EXPRESSION – Please refer to notice at top of this Agenda.
	CONSENT CALENDAR

	ADDITIONS TO AGENDA
	#09d MCOG Summary of Meetings Report for Ocotber LE.pdf
	MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
	STAFF REPORT

	#9eiii Gualala ATP Application 100520.pdf
	Mendocino Council of Governments

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



